
 
 

 
 
Committee: 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 7 JUNE 2018 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 6.10 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  
 
3. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 18th January, 2018 (previously circulated).   
  
4. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. Declarations of Interest  
 
 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this Agenda.   

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 2011, they are required 
to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests which have not already been declared in 
the Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).   

Whilst not a legal requirement, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9 and in the 
interests of clarity and transparency, Members should declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, at this point in the meeting.   

In accordance with Part B Section 2 of the Code Of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare the existence and nature of any other interests as defined in paragraphs 8(1) or 
9(2) of the Code of Conduct.   

  
6. LGA Response to the Review of Local Government Ethical Standards (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 Report of the Monitoring Officer 
  
7. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
 The Committee is recommended to pass the following recommendations in relation to the 

following item:-  
 
“That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business, on the 
grounds that it could involve the possible disclosure of exempt information, as defined in 



 

paragraph 1 of Schedule 12A of that Act.” 
 
Members are reminded that, whilst the following item(s) have been marked as exempt, it 
is for Committee itself to decide whether or not to consider each of them in private or in 
public. In making the decision, Members should consider the relevant paragraph of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and also whether the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  In 
considering their discretion Members should also be mindful of the advice of Council 
Officers.   

  
8. Summary of Complaints under the Code of Conduct (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
 Report of the Monitoring Officer 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 
  
  
 Councillors Tracy Brown (Chairman), Jon Barry, Nathan Burns, Colin Hartley, 

Roger Mace, David Whitaker and Peter Yates 
  
 
(ii) Substitute Membership 
  
 Councillors Dave Brookes (Substitute), Claire Cozler (Substitute), Nigel Goodrich 

(Substitute), Margaret Pattison (Substitute) and Peter Williamson (Substitute)  
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Liz Bateson, Democratic Services - telephone 01524 582047, or email 

ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Democratic Support, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk.  

 
 
SUSAN PARSONAGE, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER, LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Wednesday 30th May, 2018.   

 

mailto:democraticsupport@lancaster.gov.uk


 
 

Standards Committee   

 
 

LGA Response to the Review of Local Government 
Ethical Standards  

7 June 2018 
 

Report of The Monitoring Officer  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform the Standards Committee of the recent consolation by the committee on standards 
in public life and the local government ass response to the review of ethical standards.  
 

Public  
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) Note the Local Government Association response to the review of the local 
government ethical standards  

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The committee on standards on public life have recently consulted on a 
review of local go ethical standards. The review ended on the 16.3.18 

1.2 The local Government Association as the national voice of local government 
responded to the consultation a copy is attached in app 1. 

1.3 Of note in the response was a concern about principal councils’ ability to 
resolve complaints and standards issues at parish and town council level. It 
also suggests consideration is given to allowing principal councils the power 
to charge Parish and Town Councils.  

1.4 Mention is made of the political nature of the Police and Crime Commissioner, 
in the event of criminal investigations. 

1.5 The Committee may also wish to consider the commentary on the 
harassment of councillors and the need for guidance on what is reasonable 
protest or comment and what crosses the line into abuse and harassment.  

 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Copy of LGA response attached in app 1. 

 

3. Details of Consultation  

3.1 None  

Page 1 Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
None 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing): 

None 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS, such as Human Resources, Information Services, 
Property, Open Spaces: 

None 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

None 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring Officer has compiled this report.  

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None  

Contact Officer: David Brown  
Telephone:  01524 582000 
E-mail: @lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 2



 

1 

 

S
u
b
m
is
s
io
n

 
1

8
 S

m
it
h
 S

q
u

a
re

, 
L

o
n

d
o
n

, 
S

W
1
P

 3
H

Z
 

E
m

a
il 

in
fo

@
lo

c
a

l.
g
o

v
.u

k
 

T
e

l 
0

2
0

 7
6
6

4
 3

0
0

0
  
F

a
x
 0

2
0

 7
6
6

4
 3

0
3
0

 

w
w

w
.l

o
c

a
l.

g
o

v
.u

k
 

 

LGA response to the Committee on Standards in 

Public Life consultation - Review of local 

government ethical standards 

May 2018  
 
About us 
 

1. The Local Government Association (LGA) is the national voice of local 

government. We work with councils to support, promote and improve local 

government. We are a politically-led, cross-party organisation, which 

works on behalf of councils to ensure local government has a strong, 

credible voice with national government. 

 

2. We aim to influence and set the political agenda on issues that matter 

most to councils so they are able to deliver local solutions to national 

problems. The LGA covers every part of England and Wales, supporting 

local government as the most efficient and accountable part of the public 

sector. 

 

Key messages 
 

3. The LGA believes the existing, locally led approach to standards is the 

correct approach and must be maintained. It is right that there is an 

overarching national framework – set by the seven Nolan principles of 

standards in public life – but that local areas determine the structure for 

applying these locally. It would be a backward step to reverse this, and 

local flexibility should be retained. Any future changes to the framework 

should have the full involvement of the sector rather than being imposed 

upon it. 

 

4. The LGA and its members support the objective of ensuring the highest 

standards of integrity among local councillors and elected Mayors. As the 

representative organisation for local government, the LGA works with 

councils and councillors to promote conduct and leadership that is in line 

with the Nolan principles. 

 

5. While we are not complacent about this issue, it should be recognised that 

ethical standards across local government are very high. Out of a total of 

more than 19,000 elected councillors in England and Wales, there are 

very few instances of serious wrongdoing.   

 

6. It is vital that the public have confidence in the high standards of local 

government, and that there is transparency about the conduct of 

councillors and the mechanisms for dealing with alleged breaches of 

codes of conduct. Equally, it is vital that councillors themselves have 

confidence in these mechanisms, and that individuals who are subject to 

investigations are treated under the rules of natural justice. 

 

Page 3



 

2 

 

7. While the way that councillors behave and conduct themselves is 

important, the way they are treated as holders of elective office is equally 

important. Worryingly, there is a growing issue of intimidation and 

harassment of councillors. This is completely unacceptable, and must be 

dealt with robustly at all levels – by councils, corporately; by the police 

and, where relevant, by the social media companies which provide 

platforms for specific forms of abuse. 

 

Further information 
 

Standards framework 

 
8. The LGA supports the locally led approach to standards and conduct 

introduced by the Localism Act 2011. The previous centralised Standards 

Board regime was costly and ineffective, with resources devoted to 

investigating ill-founded or petty complaints in a system that helped fuel 

further tit for tat complaints. 

 

9. Reversing the locally-led approach to standards and conduct would be a 

backward step. We believe that any future changes to the current 

framework should be at the discretion of local authorities to introduce and 

shape in a way that is suitable for their areas.  

 

10. The framework has as a backstop a number of sanctions for dealing with 

the most serious conduct and performance issues. For example, 

councillors who receive a prison sentence of three months or more must 

stand down1; if a councillor fails to attend meetings for a period of six 

months they cease to be a member; and criminal sanctions apply in 

relation to the failure to declare pecuniary interests.  

 

11. Beyond these, and the sanctions available for failures to comply with local 

codes, we must be extremely careful about the suggestion of introducing 

additional sanctions to the current regime. The rights to stand for, and 

hold, elective office are fundamental parts of the democratic values that 

our country holds dear, and the need to maintain public confidence in the 

standards of local government must be carefully balanced with the need to 

avoid measures which interfere with the democratic process. 

 

12. We have some concern that the current framework creates expectations 

which cannot be met about principal councils’ ability to resolve complaints 

and standards issues at parish and town council level. Anecdotal evidence 

suggests that parish and town council complaints account for a 

disproportionate number of the complaints that some principal councils 

deal with, but that some of the complaints – perhaps personal in nature, 

dealing with hyper-local issues or the culture of the council – will never be 

solvable within the complaints mechanism, where Monitoring Officers are 

parish Monitoring Officers for codes of conduct issues only. 

 

13. Consideration should be given to how this issue can be addressed. This 

could include giving principal councils the power to charge town and 

parish councils where they are repeatedly dealing with complaints and 

undertaking investigations. 

                                                
1 The equivalent provision for MPs relates to a much more substantial yearlong prison 

sentence. 

Page 4



 

3 

 

 

Investigations 

 
14. It is important that local mechanisms for handling complaints are well 

managed, with both complainants and councillors satisfied that the issue 

has been considered in an appropriate way. These mechanisms should 

include a tiered approach to enable councils to screen out vexatious 

complaints, or able to deal with lower level complaints informally, while still 

being able to properly investigate substantive complaints. 

 

15. Where a councillor is the subject of a complaint or under investigation for 

an alleged breach of the code of conduct, it is vital that they are treated 

under the rules of natural justice and that there is seen to be a fair 

process.  

 

16. It is a concern that some councillors have reported that they do not feel 

that this is always the case. Unless an individual councillor is able to draw 

on their own private resources to provide legal advice, there may be a 

serious imbalance between the support and resources available to a 

council undertaking an investigation when compared to the individual who 

is under investigation, something that goes against the principles of 

natural justice.  

 

17. To address this, councils should consider what support there could be for 

individuals being investigated. One option is to make greater use of the 

role of the Independent Person, but some councils have reported 

challenges in attracting people to this role. 

 

18. With very limited exceptions, there should be transparency about the 

nature of the complaint and who has made it. Investigations should take 

place as quickly as possible, with individuals kept informed about progress 

and expected timescales.  

 

19. The LGA would welcome the opportunity as a result of this review to 

promote examples of best practice in this area identified by the 

Committee.  

 

20. The criminal sanctions introduced by the Localism Act in relation to failing 

to declare a pecuniary interest are an important legal backstop within the 

local standards framework. However, we have some concern in practice 

about the role of the police in investigating breaches, with some recent 

investigations taking an extremely long time, creating reputational issues 

for both local government and the police if conclusions are not reached 

quickly, or at all.   

 

21. Following the creation of the elected Police and Crime Commissioner role 

since the Localism Act was introduced, there are concerns about the risk 

of police investigations into councils and councillors being perceived to be 

politically motivated. Consideration could be given to whether allegations 

against councillors which are referred to the police should be investigated 

by a neighbouring police force.  

 

 

 

Page 5



 

4 

 

Harassment of councillors 

 
22. We welcome the fact the Committee is looking specifically at the issue of 

harassment of councillors following its recent review of Intimidation in 

Public Life. Many of the conclusions and recommendations from that 

review apply equally in relation to harassment of councillors, and we hope 

that they will be taken forward as soon as possible. 

 

23. Instances of councillors being attacked and harassed, notably on social 

media, is an increasing trend and a very serious issue. There is anecdotal 

evidence from across the country that female leaders and councillors are 

subject to more abuse than their male counterparts. In order to better 

understand this problem, the LGA will be including this issue in its 2018 

councillor census. 

 

24. It is unacceptable that councillors should be subjected to personal attacks 

and a robust response to all forms of abuse is required at every level – 

from council officers; councils corporately; the police and Crown 

Prosecution Service (CPS). Additionally, internet and social media 

providers who provide platforms for much of this abuse should also be 

required to take action to address this. 

 

25. However, there appears currently to be a mixed response to this issue in 

different places. While some councils have reported that their local police 

forces take this very seriously, in other areas there seems almost to be a 

view that such abuse is part and parcel of being an elected official. 

Additionally, we are aware that the CPS has declined to take forward 

some cases relating to the harassment of councillors. 

 

26. The LGA believes there is a need for clear and consistent guidance on 

what is reasonable protest and comment versus what crosses a line into 

abuse and harassment, and how the latter will be tackled. Councils should 

look at their own corporate response to harassment and the support they 

provide to members who have experienced it.   Again, we would welcome 

the opportunity as a result of this review to promote examples of best 

practice identified by the Committee.  

 

27. There is also a case for the CPS to produce specific guidance for 

prosecutors and the police on cases where public servants are victims of 

crime as a result of their role as a public servant. Both the police and CPS 

should consistently take the issue seriously and bring forward 

prosecutions to try to tackle it. 

 

Further information 
 

28. For further information, please contact ellie.greenwood@local.gov.uk  

 
 
 

Page 6

mailto:ellie.greenwood@local.gov.uk


 
 

Standards Committee   

 
 

Summary of Complaints under the Code of Conduct  
7 June 2018 

 
Report of The Monitoring Officer  

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report advises the committee about the progress of current complaints and any others 
received since the last report of Jan 2018 
 

This Report is public 
Appendix 1 is exempt from publication by virtue of paragraph 1 of, of Schedule 12a of 
the Local Government Act 1972. Information relating to an individual  
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

(1) The committee notes the report. 

 

1.0 Introduction 

 

1.1 The monitoring officer provides a regular report to the committee summarising 
the progress on current complaints under the code of conduct.  

 

1.2 In October 2012, the committee resolved that reports to this committee about 
complaints should be exempt from publication but should identify the subject 
members of the complaints, for the committee’s information.  

 

1.3 However, council has resolved that all members of the council should have 
access to all exempt reports, background papers and minutes, save where 
the report, background paper or minutes relates to an individual officer (other 
than an Chief Executive or Chief officers), an individual member of the council 
or and individual third party, or where the member seeking to attend has a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or other interest within parap12 (1) of section 2 
of part b of the code of conduct, in the item of business.  

 

1.4 Although not specifically articulated above, Appendix 1 of this report remains 
exempt by virtue of the restriction relating to individual members of the council 
and third party information clause as set out above. 

 

 

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



2.0 Proposal Details 

2.1 A summary of complaints is attached  

 

3.0 Details of Consultation  

3.1 None  

  

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
None 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Health & Safety, Equality & Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, 
HR, Sustainability and Rural Proofing): 

None 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

None, although consideration must always be given to proportionality and the lawful 
interference with the right to private and family life.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

None 

 

OTHER RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS, such as Human Resources, Information Services, 
Property, Open Spaces: 
 
None 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

None 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 

The Monitoring has compiled the report 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Contact Officer: Monitoring Officer 
Telephone:  01524 582000 
E-mail: @lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 8



Document is Restricted

Page 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	6 LGA Response to the Review of Local Government Ethical Standards
	LGA response to CSPL LG review FINAL (May 2018)

	8 Summary of Complaints under the Code of Conduct
	standards complaints summary May 18 - exempt


